

UNDER SINK

AquaTru 4-Stage Reverse Osmosis System





This ATU100 system has been certified by IAPMO against NSF/ANSI standard 42, 53, 58, 372, 401 and P473 for the reduction claims specified on the performance data sheet as verified and substantiated by test data and at IAPMO.org

ATU100



Table of Contents

Safety Instructions	2
Operational Parameters	2
Before Installation	2
Box Contents	3
Arbitration Agreement	20

Installation Steps

AquaTru 4-Stage Reverse Osmosis System Installation Steps Tubing Quick Connect Guide	4
Cold Tap Water Adaptor	5
Drain Saddle Installation	7
RO Faucet Installation	9
Installation of TruPure Holding Tank Sanitizer	10
RO System Location and Mounting	11
RO System Water Connection	11
System Maintenance: Filters	13
System Maintenance	14
System Maintenance: Nitrate/Nitrite Testing	16
FAQ & Troubleshooting	17
Warranty	18
Filter Replacement Records	19



WARNING 📤

Please read and keep these instructions before proceeding with the installation.

Safety Instructions

- Installation needs to comply with state and local laws and regulations.
- System must be installed indoors away from possible environmental damage.
- Do not use with water that is microbiologically unsafe or of unknown quality without adequate disinfection before the water enters the system.
- Keep the system away from heat sources and direct sunlight.
- This reverse osmosis system contains replaceable treatment components critical for effective reduction of total dissolved solids. The product should be tested periodically to verify that the system is performing satisfactorily.
- This system is intended to be installed under a sink with access to cold tap water and a waste water drain.
- To prevent the possibility of electrical shock, be sure that all electrical appliances and outlets are turned off at the circuit breaker before working in the cabinet area.
- Please wear safety glasses to protect eyes when drilling.

Operational Parameters

- Daily Production Rate: 54 GPD
- Rated Capacity 360 Gallons
- Operating Pressure: 40-85 PSI
- Use Cold Tap Water Only, 40° 100° F, (4° – 37° C)
- Max Total dissolved solids 1500 mg/L
- Maximum hardness 10 gpg (171 mg/l)
- Chlorine < 2 PPM
- PH 3-11
- Turbidity 5 NTU max

Before Installation

Inspect the system:

Please take all the components out of the box. Inspect all the parts and connection fittings carefully, make sure that nothing was damaged during shipping. If any part is cracked or broken, please do not proceed with the installation. Contact customer service for assistance.

Tools needed for Installation:

- Electric drill
 - Drill bit:
 - 1/4" for the waste water line, 1/8" for pilot hole, not mandatory
 - 13/16" for the RO water faucet
- Adjustable wrench
- Philips screwdriver
- Utility knife or scissors
- PTFE Tape (often referred to as "plumber's tape" or "Teflon® tape")

Qualified Installers

- Using a qualified installer is recommended.
- Proper installation is the responsibility of the installer.
- Product failure due to improper installation is not covered under the warranty.



Box Contents



Filter manifold and 3 filters (PRE/Carbon Filter, RO Filter & VOC Filter)





RO holding tank

RO water faucet



Cold tap water adaptor with 3/8" adaptor and a 1/2" conversion thread



Drain saddle for waste water for 1.5" inch drain line



RO faucet quick connect fitting (with clear washer)



RO holding tank valve



TruPure holding tank sanitizer (installation gasket inside the chamber)



Filter manifold installation hardware



AquaTru 4-Stage Reverse Osmosis System Installation Steps

Installation will be a breeze, since most of the parts are already assembled. We will guide you through the rest with the following steps:

- 1. How to use the quick connect fittings
- 2. Fitting the cold tap water adaptor
- 3. Mounting the drian saddle for RO waste water
- 4. Installation of the RO faucet
- 5. Connecting the TruPure holding tank sanitizer
- 6. Location and installation of the RO water system
- 7. Making all of the required water connections
- **8.** System startup
- **9.** System maintenance

It is important that you follow these steps in the order listed above to minimize any potential installation issues.

Tubing Quick Connect Guide

The tube connection in your RO system uses a Quick Connect locking mechanism to lock the tubing in place. Be careful not to damage your tubing when you unpack it. Tubing that is bent at the end or has other damage will not seal and leak water. If your tubing arrives damaged, please contact customer service for assistance.



Attached Tubing:

Push tubing in straight and level with the Collet. **The tubing will go in 5/8 of an inch into the Collet before the lock is activated**.

Pull on the tube to make sure the lock has activated and the tubing is secure.

Release Tubing:

Push and hold the Collet in to release the lock while pulling out on it.

Collet must be held down while pulling up on the tube to release the tube.







Cold Tap Water Adaptor STEP 2

1/2"

3/8"

1/2"

WARNING

The water supply to the unit MUST be from the cold water line. Hot water will severely damage your RO system.

Locate the cold water valve underneath the sink. and turn it off. Next, open the cold water handle on your sink to release the pressure. Check to make sure the water has stopped flowing before proceeding.

Note: On single handle faucets, the hot water may have to be turned off to prevent hot water crossover during installation. If water continues to come out of the faucet with the cold and hot water valve turned off, the main water supply must be turned off as well.

If the valve does not fit on the cold water shut off valve, a second option is to install the valve on the end of the faucet connector hose that connects with the kitchen faucet.



Note: The AquaTru Under Sink RO System comes with a 3/8" cold tap water adaptor that has a 1/2" conversion thread. Based on your plumbing needs, you may need to use the additional conversion thread.



STEP

Cold Tap Water Adaptor

Before mounting onto the tap water line, connect the white tubing to the end of the adaptor and then install the adaptor. The AquaTru Under Sink RO system comes with comes with a 3/8" adaptor that has a 1/2" conversion thread. Please use the appropriate adaptor size based on your plumbing needs.

After connecting the white tubing to the cold tap water adaptor, give it a pull to make sure it is secure on the adaptor. Wrap the cold water line shutoff valve with **plumber's tape** and then wrap the male thread on the cold tap water adaptor with **plumber's tape**.

First, install the adaptor to the cold water valve, then install the faucet connector hose to the adaptor.





Drain Saddle Installation

Caution

STEP

To avoid possible drainage noise, mount the drain saddle as low as possible onto the vertical tailpiece. The drain saddle assembly should be installed above the trap and on the vertical or horizontal tailpiece.





STEP

Drain Saddle Installation

Mark the position of the hole on the drain pipe and drill a 1/4" hole through one side of the drain pipe. There is a piece of self-adhesive sponge provided. Glue this sponge to the inside of the saddle, this will cushion any gap between the saddle and the pipe. **Make sure the hole on the sponge is thoroughly punched out, and align it to the hole in the saddle.**

Take the half side of the saddle without the foam and insert a nut into the recess on each side.

Position both halves of the saddle on the drainpipe with the saddle's opening aligned over the drilled hole. The foam gasket will be between the drain saddle and the drilled hole.

Tip: To ensure the hole on the drain saddle is aligned with the hole in the drain pipe, insert the drill bit into the drain saddle and use the drill bit to align the two holes as you assemble the drain saddle onto the drain pipe.

Secure the drain clamp halves together in place on the drain pipe. Screw bolts through the drain clamp half with the foam gasket and the other half with the two nuts installed. Do not over tighten. When tightening the bolts, make sure there is equal space on both sides between the drain saddles.





STEP

RO Faucet Installation

The RO faucet may be installed on any flat surface. Check the underside of your install location for interference by making sure that drilling a hole will not damage any pipes or wiring underneath the countertop of the sink. Check to be sure there is enough room for the threaded faucet stem and nut.

Note: For drilling, you must use an appropriate drill bit and drilling method for the material of your sink and or countertop. Different drill bits are required for stainless steel, porcelain, marble, etc.

You may use an existing hole in your counter or sink or drill a new hole **(if using an existing hole begin at step 2)**. Make sure the faucet decoration plate and nut plate are big enough to cover the hole you use.

- 1. Drill a **13/16"** hole using an appropriate drill bit and drilling method for the material.
- 2. Remove the plastic nut from the threaded faucet stem.
- 3. Insert the threaded faucet stem though the newly drilled or pre-existing hole, making sure the decorative plates and clear gasket stay on the threaded stem and that they completely cover the hole when installed.
- 4. Under the sink, install the plastic nut on the threaded faucet stem, making sure the gasket that comes with the fitting is seated inside the fitting. Hand tighten it. Make sure the faucet does not move and the top decorative plate covers the hole.
- 5. Install the RO faucet quick connect fitting to the threaded stem. First, wrap plumber's tape around the thread. Make sure the clear washer is fully seated inside the quick connect fitting. Screw the fitting onto the threaded stem. Hand tighten with an adjustable wrench. **Do not overtighten.**





STEP

Under Sink / Instructions

Installation of TruPure Holding Tank Sanitizer

- 1. Unscrew the blue cap from the RO holding tank.
- 2. Wrap the plumber's tape around on the stainless steel threaded stem of the RO holding tank.
- 3. Screw the TruPure holding tank sanitizer onto the holding tank, hand tighten.
- 4. Remove the black gasket inside the TruPure holding tank sanitizer. Insert this gasket inside the holding tank valve.
- 5. Wrap plumber's tape on the male thread of the TruPure holding tank sanitizer and screw the RO holding tank valve onto the TruPure sanitizer's threaded stem, hand tighten.









RO System Location and Mounting

Install the three filters into the filter manifold in accordance to the filter color code. Locate the area under your sink where you want to install the RO system, (RO manifold with filters and RO holding tank).

Note: The filter manifold can be mounted on a cabinet wall.

Helpful Hint: Write the date of filter installation with a permanent marker on the filter body, or use our helpful Filter Replacement Records chart on the last page of this manual, so you can easily identify when to replace the filters.

The **Pre-Filter** should be replaced every **6 months** The **VOC Filter** is replaced every **12 months** The **RO Filter** is replaced every **24 months** The **VOC Carbon with PH+ Mineral Boost Filter** is replaced every **12 months**

Caution

Before mounting the filter manifold on a cabinet wall, make sure it can support the weight of the filters and manifold and the wall is thick enough to accommodate the mounting screws. If the mounting screws are too long, we recommend that you buy shorter screws at your local hardware store.

RO System Water Connection

After you have located the optimal location for your filters and RO holding tank, you will need to cut the 1/4" tubing to the correct length using the diagram below. Cut the tubing using a sharp utility knife. Make sure not to bend or damage the tubing.

Connection Point:



A to B

Connect the white tubing from the tap water adaptor valve point **A** to the quick connect fitting marked **B** - marked **"Cold Supply"** on the filter manifold.



C to D

Connect the white tubing to the quick connect fitting **C** - marked **"Holding Tank"** on the filter manifold, then connect the other end to the holding tank valve **D**.



E to F

Connect the white tube to the quick connect fitting **E** - marked **"Water Faucet,"** on the filter manifold, then connect the other end to the RO water faucet quick connect fitting **F.**



G to H

Connect the yellow tube to the quick connect fitting marked **"Drain" - G** on the filter manifold, then connect the other end to the drain saddle valve **H.**







System Maintenance: Filters

Turn on the tap water:

Slowly turn on your cold water supply, then open the tap water adaptor valve, (turn counterclockwise) to allow untreated water to enter the system.

CHECK FOR LEAKS!

Open RO holding tank valve:

Open the tank's ball value to allow water to enter the tank. **The tank's value is "ON" when the value handle is parallel (in the same direction) with the value outlet.**

CHECK FOR LEAKS!

Wait for the tank to fill:

Before usage, fill the RO holding tank and empty it completely two times. Allow 2 to 3 hours for the tank to fill. When the tank is filled, the RO system will shut off automatically.

CAUTION:

When the unit is first filled with water, some tiny black particles are flushed out of the carbon filter. It's important that you fill the RO holding tank and empty it out 2 times before consuming the water.

Drain Tank:

Open the RO water faucet to drain the tank. Let the tank drain completely before closing the lever.

CHECK FOR LEAKS!

Make sure there is no leaking at the joint, fitting, valve and tubing connections.

END OF INSTALLATION



AquaTru® ATU100 is certified against ANSI/NSF Standard 42, 53, 58, 401 & P473 to remove 74 contaminants as specified in the performance data sheet.

AquaTru.com



Under Sink / Maintenance

System Maintenance

Filter Change:

The RO system contains three filters that must be replaced at regular intervals to maintain performance. **Use only genuine AquaTru** filters. The three filters are:

- Pre-Filter (AT2001) should be replaced every 6 months or every 600 gallons, whichever comes first.
- VOC Filter (ATU2003) is replaced every 12 months or every 360 gallons, whichever comes first. When replacing this filter we recommend that you also sanitize the holding tank.
- See Sanitize RO holding tank before proceeding.
- RO Filter (AT2002) is replaced every 24 months or every 1,200 gallons, whichever comes first.
 When replacing this filter, we recommend that you also sanitize the holding tank.
 See Sanitize RO holding tank before proceeding.
- VOC Carbon with PH+ Mineral Boost Filter (AT2004) is replaced every 12 months or 360 gallons, whichever comes first.

Sources of supply for replacement components: AquaTru.com

Tips before you start:

- 1. Ensure the service area is free of any excess dirt or dust in order to not cross contaminate parts.
- 2. Wash hands with soap and water and/or wear sanitary gloves.

How to Change Your Filters

- 1. Turn off the cold water supply line.
- 2. Empty the RO holding tank by opening the RO water faucet.
- 3. Remove the filter to be replaced.

Helpful Hint: The filter can pivot out of the base to make it easier to unscrew.

4. Install the new filter, making sure that the filter is fully installed.

Helpful Hint: Write the date of filter installation with a permanent marker on the filter body, or use our helpful Filter Replacement Records chart on the last page of this manual, so you can easily identify when to replace the filters.

- 5. Close the RO water faucet.
- 6. Open the cold tap water supply line.

CHECK FOR LEAKS!

- 7. After the RO holding tank has been completely filled, empty it to flush out the filter before consuming.
- 8. Refill the RO holding tank.



STEP

Under Sink / Maintenance

System Maintenance: Sanitizing the RO Holding Tank

Sanitize RO holding tank:

The RO system should be sanitized once a year. We recommend that you do the sanitizing process each time you replace the VOC filter, every 12 months. You should complete the sanitizing process **before** you replace the VOC filter. Please do the following.

For best results – We recommend that you use 2 tablespoons of household bleach. To ensure that the tanks get sterilized, check that the bleach hasn't expired. If it has expired, buy new bleach.

Tips before you start:

- 1. Make sure you have sanitizing solution and a new VOC filter.
- 2. Ensure the surface area is free of any excess dirt or dust in order to not cross contaminate parts.
- 3. Wash hands with soap and water and/or wear sanitary gloves.

How to Sanitize Your RO Holding Tank

- 1. Turn off the cold water supply line to the RO system.
- 2. Open the RO water faucet, and drain the water out of the RO holding tank. Before proceeding, make sure that the tank is completely empty.
- 3. Unscrew the top cap of the TruPure holding tank sanitizer. Note: If the tank is not completely empty, the RO holding tank and sanitizer is pressurized and will spray water when opened.
- 4. Pour 2 tablespoons of bleach into the tank sanitizer. If there is too much waterin the sanitizer to add bleach, pour the water out before adding the bleach.
- 5. Reconnect the top cap on the tank sanitizer, make sure that it is on tight.
- 6 Turn off the RO water faucet.
- 7. Turn on the cold water supply line for the system to fill the RO system.

CHECK FOR LEAKS!

- 8. Allow 2 hours for the RO holding tank to completely fill.
- 9. Empty the RO holding tank by opening the RO water faucet.
- 10. Refill the RO holding tank again and close the cold water supply line.
- 11. Empty the RO holding tank.
- 12. Replace the VOC filter and other filters as needed.

Helpful Hint: Write the date on the filter you replaced and notate it in our helpful Filter Replacement Records chart on the last page of this manual, so you can easily remember when it needs to be replaced again.

- 13. After replacing a filter, run two full tanks of water through the filter and drain the water out before comsuming the water.
- 14. Should you have any further questions please refer to our website at aquatruwater.com or call our customer service department at 1-800-220-6570.

CHECK FOR LEAKS!



Under Sink / Maintenance

System Maintenance: Nitrate/Nitrite Testing

All water filtration systems with RO filters certified to remove Nitrate/Nitrate must provide a way for the user to verify the performance of the RO filter. This is because, under certain use conditions, the efficiency of Nitrate/Nitrate removal rate can drop.



Please scan the QR Code if you want to receive a free set of Nitrate/Nitrite Test Strips. These Test Strips will let you test the Nitrate and Nitrite Content of your AquaTru Purified water and ensure the water you drink is always the highest quality possible. We recommend testing every 6 months or when you change the Pre/Carbon Filter. If the Nitrate/Nitrite exceeds the safe levels indicated on the package, replace the RO filter to restore the performance.

Note that only Nitrite/Nitrate is affected by these use conditions; all other contamination tested under NSF 58 will maintain its efficiency even if Nitrate/Nitrite does not.





Under Sink / Maintenance

FAQ & Troubleshooting

PROBLEM	CAUSE	SOLUTION
Low / slow production	Low water pressure	Make sure the water supply is turned on and the valve is all the way open.
It takes longer than 3 hours to fill the tank		Tap water pressure should be at a minimum of 40 PSI. If your home does not have 40 PSI, we suggest replacing your under sink purifier with an AquaTru countertop model that comes with a built-in pump.
	Crimps in tubing	Check tubing and straighten and replace as needed.
	Clogged filters	If the production rate previously was high but it has gone down significantly over a period of months, you should replace the Pre-Filter and RO Filter.
Low water flow from the faucet	Check the air pressure in the tank	The RO holding tank should have a pressure of 6 to 8 PSI when empty. Use a pressure gauge and pump with a Schrader valve connector to refill the tank.
	RO holding tank valve	Make sure that the holding tank valve is fully open.
	Check for sanitize gasket in sanitizer	The TruPure Holding Tank Sanitizer is shipped with the gasket stored inside the sanitizer. Before installing, unscrew the sanitizer to access the small bag inside that holds the gasket, and use that gasket when installing the RO holding tank valve.
Small amount of water in the tank	System startup	Normally it takes about 2 hours to fill one tank. Note: Low incoming water pressure and water temperature can drastically reduce the water production rate.
	Low water pressure	Tap water pressure should be at a minimum of 40 PSI. If your home does not have 40 PSI, we suggest replacing your under sink purifier with an AquaTru countertop model that comes with a built-in pump.
	Too much air in the holding tank	The RO holding water tank should have a pressure of 6 to 8 PSI when empty. Use a pressure gauge to check the pressure. If the reading is higher than 8 PSI, let air out using the Schrader valve on the bottom of the tank.





FAQ & Troubleshooting

PROBLEM	CAUSE	SOLUTION	
Leaks from filter manifold	Filter not fully installed, or O-ring is damaged	 Check that the filter is fully installed. Depressurize the filters by turning off the tap water supply line and then turning off the RO holding tank valve." Turn off the tap water supply line. Turn off the RO holding tank valve. Open the RO faucet. When water stops flowing from the faucet, it is safe to remove each filter. Inspect O-ring. Reinstall the filters making sure they are fully inserted. Repressurize the system. 	
Water leaks	A gasket is not fully sealing	Depressurize the system and remove all water from the tank. Remove the item that is leaking and inspect the gasket to make sure it is free of any defects. If the leak is from a thread, apply new plumber's tape and then reinstall the components, making sure you tighten in accordance with the manual.	

One-Year Limited Warranty

Your AquaTru water purifier is warranted to be free from defects in materials and workmanship for one year from the original purchase date. Should the product have a defect in materials or workmanship, we will repair or replace it without charge to you (a shipping and processing fee will apply). **Warranty does not include filters**. To obtain service under warranty, simply call our customer service center toll-free at **800.220.6570**.

This warranty does not cover filters, damage caused by accident, misuse or any use other than as intended and described in this product manual, or damage resulting from failure to maintain and clean this product as also specified in this product manual. This warranty applies only to the original purchaser of the AquaTru water purifier.

ALL EXPRESS AND IMPLIED WARRANTIES FOR THIS PRODUCT, INCLUDING IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ARE LIMITED IN DURATION TO THE WARRANTY PERIOD, AND NO WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WILL APPLY AFTER THIS PERIOD.

Some states do not allow limitations on the duration of implied warranties, so the above limitation may not apply to you. While this warranty gives you specific legal rights, you may also have other rights which may vary from state to state.

Contact Info for Warranty Service:

AquaTru,® LLC P.O. Box 9169 | Van Nuys, CA | 91409-8291 1.800.220.6570 | aquatru.com



AquaTru.com

©2024 AquaTru,[®] LLC. All Rights Reserved. aquatruwater.com/patents



Under Sink / Filter Records

Filter Replacement Records

1 Pre/Carbon Filter	2 RO Filter	3 VOC Filter
Date:	Date:	Date:



Arbitration Agreement

PLEASE READ THIS AGREEMENT CAREFULLY. YOU ACCEPT THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT BY RETAINING THE PRODUCT(S) SHIPPED IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT (THE "PRODUCTS") FOR MORE THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER RECEIPT. IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT, YOU MAY RETURN THE PRODUCT TO THE COMPANY WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF RECEIPT FOR A FULL REFUND.

THIS ARBITRATION AGREEMENT ("AGREEMENT") AFFECTS YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES BY PROVIDING THE DISPUTES BETWEEN YOU AND THE MANUFACTURER, DISTRIBUTOR AND/OR SELLER OF THIS PRODUCT (COLLECTIVELY, "COMPANY"), MUST BE RESOLVED THROUGH BINDING ARBITRATION AND NOT IN COURT. IT ALSO PROVIDES THAT ANY DISPUTE CANNOT BE RESOLVED IN A CLASS ACTION OR OTHER PROCEEDING WHERE YOU REPRESENT OTHER PERSONS OR OTHER PERSONS REPRESENT YOU, AND THAT NO CLASS OR REPRESENTATIVE ARBITRATIONS ARE PERMITTED. PLEASE CAREFULLY READ ALL TERMS IN THIS AGREEMENT.

1. RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS OR DISPUTES.

Any claim or dispute between you and Company (or any of Company's subsidiaries or affiliates) arising out of or relating in any way to the Product or this Agreement shall be resolved through final, binding arbitration. This arbitration obligation is reciprocally binding on both you and the Company and applies regardless of whether the claim or dispute involves a tort, fraud, misrepresentation, product liability, negligence, violation of a statute, or any other legal theory. Both you and Company specifically acknowledge and agree that you waive your right to bring a lawsuit based on such claims or disputes and to have such lawsuit resolved by a judge or jury.

2. LIMITATION OF LEGAL REMEDIES.

All arbitrations under this Agreement shall be conducted on an individual (and not a class wide) basis, and an arbitrator shall have no authority to award class wide relief. You acknowledge and agree that this Agreement specifically prohibits you and the Company from commencing arbitration proceedings as a representative of others or joining in any arbitration proceedings brought by any other person. The parties agree that no class or representative actions of any type are permitted.

3. ARBITRATION PROCEDURES.

a. Before instituting an arbitration, if you have any dispute, we strongly encourage you to contact the Company to try to resolve the matter by calling 800.218.3560, although you are not required to do so.

b. The arbitration of any claim or dispute under this Agreement shall be conducted in accordance with the expedited procedures set forth in the JAMS Comprehensive Arbitration Rules and Procedures as those Rules exist on the date you receive the Product, including Rules 16.1 and 16.2 of those Rules. These rules and procedures are available by calling JAMS or by visiting its website at jamsadr.com. The arbitration of any claim or dispute under this Agreement shall be conducted by an arbitrator who has at least five years of experience conducting arbitrations.

c. The arbitration of any claim or dispute under this Agreement shall be conducted in the State of California or the location in which you received this Agreement. For claims of \$10,000 or less, you may choose whether the arbitration proceeds in person, by telephone, or based only on submissions.

d. The Company shall pay costs for the arbitration of claims, including any JAMS Case Management Fee and all professional fees for the arbitrator's services. The Company shall pay the fees and costs of its own counsel, experts and witnesses and shall not be able to recoup them from you even if you do not prevail in the arbitration. Unless otherwise provided by law, you acknowledge and agree that you shall pay the fees and costs of your own counsel, experts and witnesses.

4. CHOICE OF LAW.

The arbitration provisions of this Agreement and any arbitration conducted pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. Secs. 1-16). In this respect, the parties acknowledge that this Agreement involves a transaction conducted in interstate commerce. Otherwise, this Agreement and the rights of the parties hereunder shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California, exclusive of conflict or choice of law rules.

5. SEVERABILITY.

If any provision of this Agreement is declared or found to be unlawful, unenforceable or void, such provision will be ineffective only to the extent that it is found unlawful, unenforceable or void, and the remainder of the provision and all other provisions shall remain fully enforceable.



Acuerdo de Arbitraje

LEA ATENTAMENTE ESTE ACUERDO. USTED ACEPTA LOS TÉRMINOS DE ESTE ACUERDO AL CONSERVAR EL PRODUCTO (LOS PRODUCTOS) ENVIADOS BAJO A ESTE ACUERDO (LOS "PRODUCTOS") POR MÁS DE TREINTA (30) DÍAS DESPUÉS DE SU RECEPCIÓN. SI NO ESTÁ DE ACUERDO CON LOS TÉRMINOS DE ESTE ACUERDO, PUEDE DEVOLVER EL PRODUCTO A LA EMPRESA EN UN PLAZO DE TREINTA (30) DÍAS A PARTIR DE HABERLO RECIBIDO PARA OBTENER UN REEMBOLSO COMPLETO.

TESTE ACUERDO DE ARBITRAJE ("ACUERDO") AFECTA A SUS DERECHOS Y RECURSOS LEGALES AL ESTABLECER QUE LAS DISPUTAS ENTRE USTED Y EL FABRICANTE, DISTRIBUIDOR Y/O VENDEDOR DE ESTE PRODUCTO (COLECTIVAMENTE, "COMPAÑÍA"), DEBEN RESOLVERSE MEDIANTE ARBITRAJE VINCULANTE Y NO EN LOS TRIBUNALES. TAMBIÉN ESTABLECE QUE CUALQUIER DISPUTA NO PUEDE SER RESUELTA EN UNA ACCIÓN COLECTIVA U OTRO PROCEDIMIENTO EN EL QUE USTED REPRESENTE A OTRAS PERSONAS O QUE OTRAS PERSONAS LE REPRESENTEN A USTED, Y QUE NO SE PERMITEN ARBITRAJES COLECTIVOS O REPRESENTATIVOS. POR FAVOR LEA DETENIDAMENTE TODOS LOS TÉRMINOS DE ESTE ACUERDO.

1. RESOLUCIÓN DE RECLAMACIONES O DISPUTAS.

Cualquier reclamación o disputa entre usted y la Compañía (o cualquiera de las subsidiarias o filiales de la Compañía) que surja o esté relacionada de alguna manera con el Producto o este Acuerdo se resolverá mediante un arbitraje final y vinculante. Esta obligación de arbitraje es recíprocamente vinculante tanto para usted como para la Compañía y se aplica independientemente de si la reclamación o disputa implica un agravio, fraude, tergiversación, responsabilidad por el producto, negligencia, violación de una ley o cualquier otra teoría legal. Tanto usted como la Compañía reconocen y aceptan específicamente que renuncian a su derecho a presentar una demanda judicial basada en dichas reclamaciones o disputas y a que dicha demanda sea resuelta por un juez o un jurado.

2. LIMITACIÓN DE LOS RECURSOS LEGALES.

Todos los arbitrajes en virtud del presente Acuerdo se llevarán a cabo de forma individual (y no colectiva), y un árbitro no tendrá autoridad para conceder una reparación colectiva. Usted reconoce y acepta que este Acuerdo le prohíbe específicamente a usted y a la Compañía iniciar procedimientos de arbitraje como representante de otros o unirse a cualquier procedimiento de arbitraje presentado por cualquier otra persona. Las partes acuerdan que no se permiten acciones colectivas o representativas de ningún tipo.

3. PROCEDIMIENTOS DE ARBITRAJE.

a. Antes de iniciar un arbitraje, si tiene alguna disputa le recomendamos encarecidamente que se ponga en contacto con la Compañía para intentar resolver el asunto llamando al 800.218.3560, aunque no está obligado a hacerlo.
b. El arbitraje de cualquier reclamación o disputa en virtud de este Acuerdo se llevará a cabo de acuerdo con los procedimientos acelerados establecidos en las Normas y Procedimientos de Arbitraje Integrales de JAMS, tal y como existían en la fecha en que usted recibió el Producto, incluidas las Normas 16.1 y 16.2 de dichas Normas. Estas normas y procedimientos están disponibles llamando a JAMS o visitando su sitio web en www.jamsadr.com. El arbitraje de cualquier reclamación o disputa en virtud de este Acuerdo a cabo por un árbitro que tenga al menos cinco años de experiencia en la realización de arbitrajes.

c. Él arbitraje de cualquier reclamación o disputa en virtud de este Acuerdo se llevará a cabo en el Estado de California o en el lugar en el que usted recibió este Acuerdo. En el caso de reclamaciones de \$10,000 o menos, usted podrá elegir si el arbitraje se lleva a cabo en persona, por teléfono o únicamente basado en la presentación de documentación.
 d. La Compañía pagará los costes del arbitraje de las reclamaciones, incluyendo cualquier tasa de gestión de casos de JAMS y todos los honorarios profesionales por los servicios del árbitro. La Compañía pagará los honorarios y costes de sus propios abogados, peritos y testigos y no podrá recuperarlos de usted aunque no prevalezca en el arbitraje. A menos que la ley disponga lo contrario, usted reconoce y acepta que pagará los honorarios y costes de su propio abogado, peritos y testigos.

4. ELECCIÓN DE LA LEY.

Las disposiciones de arbitraje de este Acuerdo y cualquier arbitraje llevado a cabo de conformidad con los términos de este Acuerdo se regirán por la Ley Federal de Arbitraje (9 U.S.C. Artículos 1-16). A este respecto, las partes reconocen que este Acuerdo implica una transacción realizada en el comercio interestatal. Por lo demás, el presente Acuerdo y los derechos de las partes en virtud del mismo se regirán e interpretarán de acuerdo con las leyes del Estado de California, excluyendo las normas de conflicto o elección de la ley.

5. DISPOSICIONES INDEPENDIENTES.

Si alguna de las disposiciones del presente Acuerdo se declara o se considera ilegal, inaplicable o nula, dicha disposición será ineficaz sólo en la medida en que se considere ilegal, inaplicable o nula, y el resto de las disposiciones y todas las demás cláusulas seguirán siendo aplicables plenamente.











©2024 AquaTru, LLC. All Rights Reserved. 01.24.R1